
           

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA

Tuesday, June 30, 2020
8:30 AM

Executive Conference Room, Level Three
Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California

MEMBERS:
ALTERNATE:  

Mayor Marty Simonoff and Council Member Cecilia Hupp
Council Member Christine Marick

This meeting is being conducted consistent with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 dated
March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.  The Finance Committee Meeting will be held on
June 30, 2020 at 8:30 AM in-person and via a teleconference.  To provide comments in person, the
Executive Conference Room will be open to a limited number of members from the public on a first come
first served basis in observance of social distancing guidelines; masks will be required.  To provide
comments by teleconference, the Dial-in Number is (714) 671-3685 and Participant Code
is 727-834-72. The agenda packet can be viewed on the City of Brea website at  
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes.   Hard copies of the agenda  packet  are 
available via USPS with proper notice by calling (714) 990-7676.

Materials related to an item on the agenda submitted to the Finance Committee after distribution of the
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the third floor lobby of the Civic & Cultural Center at 1
Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA during normal business hours.  Such documents may also be available on
the City's website subject to staff's ability to post documents before the meeting.  

             
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
 

1. Matters from the Audience
 
CONSENT
 

2.   Action Minutes for June 9, 2020 Meeting - Approve. 

 
DISCUSSION
 

3.   Acceptance of Contract and Notice of Completion for Contract with Big Ben, Inc. for 375-395
Central Avenue Sewer Improvements, CIP No. 7627 -  Accept project as complete and authorize City
Clerk to record Notice of Completion and to release the Payment and Performance Bond upon
notification from the Public Works Department.

 
4.   Approve Plans and Specifications, Receive Bids, and Award Contract with Big Ben, Inc. in the

Amount of $5,138,722.64 for the North Hills Tract Water Improvements and Northwood Avenue
Main Water and Sewer Replacement, Project Nos. 7459 7460, 7431 and 7628  - Approve the Plans
and Specifications; Receive bids, Award Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Big
Ben, Inc. in the amount of $5,138,722.64; and Authorize the City Engineer to issue Change Orders up
to a "not to exceed" amount of 10% of the Contract Price.

 

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, June 30, 2020

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes


5.   Maintenance Agreement for Slurry Seal Program - Accept proposal and enter into a contract
agreement with Doug Martin Contracting Company, Inc., for street slurry seal program at various
locations throughout the City.

 
6.   Approve Plans and Specifications, Receive Bids, and Award Contract with R.J. Noble Company

in the amount of $458,507.50 for the Alley Rehab. Projects - Approve the Plans and Specifications;
Receive bids; Award Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, RJ Noble Company in
the amount of $458,507.50; and, Authorize the City Engineer to issue Change Orders up to a "not to
exceed" amount of 10% of the Contract Price.

 
7.   Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with LPA, Inc. for Parks, Recreation and

Human Services Planning Services - Approve Amendment No. 1 with LPA, Inc. in a not-to-exceed
amount of $6,646.24 resulting in a total contract amount not-to-exceed $56,646.24 and appropriate
$6,646.24 from Park Development Reserves (Fund 250).
 

 
8.   Extension of the Lateral Police Officer Bonus Incentive Pilot Program - Continue for an additional

year the lateral police officer recruitment incentive bonus pilot program.
 

9.   Approval of Fiscal Year 2020-21 Property Tax Rate to Fund the City's Paramedic Program
- Approve resolution.

 
10. Schedule Next Meeting:  July 14, 2020
 

cc: Mayor Pro Tem Steven Vargas
Council Member Glenn Parker

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s
Office at (714) 990-7757. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable City staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.
(28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II)

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, June 30, 2020



  2. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Action Minutes for June 9, 2020 Meeting - Approve. 

Attachments
06-09-2020 Minutes 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Tuesday, June 9, 2020 

8:30 AM 

Teleconference Dial-in Number: (714) 671-3685 

 Participant Code: 130-326-44 

 Direct Dial Extension: 1113 

 
This meeting was conducted consistent with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 dated 
March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.  The Finance Committee Meeting was held 
via a teleconference call at which time the public was welcome to participate. 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
ATTENDEES: Mayor Marty Simonoff, Council Member Cecilia Hupp, Chris Emeterio, Tony Olmos, 
Cindy Russell, Tracy Steinkruger, Bill Bowlus, Rudy Correa, Michael Ho, Faith Madrazo, Chris 
Nigg, Alicia Brenner, Jenn Colacion, Brian Ingallinera and Linda Tang 
 

 

1. Matters from the Audience – Tracy Steinkruger provided the Committee an update 
regarding staff’s intention to submit a non-competitive grant application in the amount of 
$150,000 through the Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) Program to offset costs for the 
City’s Housing Element Update efforts.  The grant application deadline is currently July 1, 
2020 and staff anticipate bringing this item to the June 16, 2020 City Council Meeting for 
consideration. 

CONSENT 

2. Approval of Minutes of May 26, 2020 Meeting – Receive and File.  

DISCUSSION 

3. Professional Services Agreement with HF&H Consultants, LLC for Solid Waste SB 
1383 Contracting Assistance in the Amount Not-to-Exceed $30,000 – Mayor Marty 
Simonoff abstained from making any recommendation.  Item recommended to be 
brought to the June 16, 2020 Study Session for further discussion. 

4. Interim Contract with Western Golf Properties for Birch Hills Golf Course and 
Funding for the Maintenance, Operations and Other Related Costs  – The 
Committee discussed item and recommended the scope of services be revised to 
include language regarding the inclusion of golf youth program(s) and a strong 
Marshal Program.  Item recommended to be brought to the June 16, 2020 Study 
Session for further discussion. 

5. Extend Landscape Maintenance Contracts for Six Months in Maintenance Districts 
1, 3, 5 and 6 – Recommended for City Council Approval.  Contract extensions for all 
other landscape maintenance areas not listed in the agenda title are forwarded to 
City Council with no recommendation. 



 

 

6. Consideration of First Amendment to the Communications Facility Lease 
Agreement with Los Angeles Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA) 
Limited Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless at the Downtown Parking Structure    
– Recommended for City Council Approval. 

7. Approve the Agreement with Fuscoe Engineering, Inc. to Provide NPDES 
Stormwater Management Services – The Committee discussed item and 
recommended the agreement and staff report be revised to clarify that any cost 
increase as part of the term of the agreement shall be approved by City 
Council. Recommended for City Council Approval. 

8. 3rd Floor Remodel - COVID-19 Update - Verbal Update: Jenn Colacion 

Jenn Colacion provided an update on the 3rd Floor Remodel including a 
request in the amount of $75,000 to install clear panels on top of the 94 new 
workstations raising the workstation height from 50 inches to 66 inches. This 
request will provide additional safety measures as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic.  The Committee discussed item and recommended for City Council 
approval. 

In addition, Tony Olmos provided an update to the Committee regarding the 
proposed award of construction of the private offices located on the 3rd Floor to 
People Space and further discussion to be brought to the June 16, 2020 Study 
Session.  Tony Olmos mentioned that the proposed construction costs are 
within budget.  However, there may be a possibility that the total project cost 
will go over budget. 

9. Fire Services - FY 2020-21 Budget Decision Package Review - Verbal Update 

A handout of the three Fire decision packages were disseminated to the 
Committee for review.  Chris Nigg provided an overview of the decision 
packages and the Committee recommended for City Council approval.  

10. Schedule Next Meeting:  Tuesday, June 9, 2020 – Correction was made to the 
meeting date to Tuesday, June 30, 2020. 

 

Meeting adjourned: 8:47 a.m. 

 
cc:  Mayor Pro Tem Steven Vargas 
      Council Member Christine Marick 
      Council Member Glenn Parker 

 



  3. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Contract and Notice of Completion for Contract with Big Ben, Inc.
for 375-395 Central Avenue Sewer Improvements, CIP No. 7627

RECOMMENDATION
Accept project as complete and authorize City Clerk to record Notice of Completion;
and

1.

Authorize City Clerk to release the Payment and Performance Bond upon notification
from the Public Works Department.

2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City Council awarded a Construction Contract (“Contract”) to Big Ben, Inc. ("Big Ben”)
on November 19, 2019, in the amount of $296,167.50 for the 375-395 Central Avenue Sewer
Improvements, Capital Improvement Program (CIP) No. 7627 (“Project”), and approved up to
a 10% Contract contingency for a total approved Contract budget of $325,000.

The scope of work for the Project included removal of an existing 6” sewer main, upsizing
this line to an 8” sewer main, replacement of sewer manholes, and sewer main tie-in’s at Site
Drive and Central Avenue. The new 8” sewer line traverses through the commercial property
at 375-395 Central Avenue within an existing sewer easement dedicated to the City
(Attachment A). The project was completed on April 22, 2020.

The amount of Contract Change Orders (“CCO”) approved on the Project is $27,117.68,
which equates to 9.2% of the original Contract amount of $296,167.50. There were two main
CCO’s to the Project, with some minor quantity adjustments as follows: 

CO#1 - Unforeseen obstruction within the pipe trench area related to a storm drain
crossing.
CCO#2 - Trench issues within the existing 6” sewer line trench, which required added
time and materials to remove the existing line and install the new 8” sewer line.

Therefore, with the CCO’s, the final Contract total cost is $323,285.18. The improvements
have been completed and staff is recommending the City Council approve the Acceptance of
Work performed by Big Ben.

The following is a summary of contract costs:

Original Construction Contract Amount $296,167.50



Approved Change Orders $27,117.68
Big Ben Construction Contract Amount $323,285.18
Approved Construction Contract Budget $325,000.00
Remaining Construction Contract Balance $1,714.82

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The final Contract amount is $323,285.18, which is under the approved construction Contract
budget.  The source of funds is from the Sewer Utility Fund (Fund 430) ($325,000).  Once
the Project is closed-out, any remaining unspent funds will be re-allocated back to Fund 430.
 
The Project removed and capped/plugged the existing 6” sewer main, upsized the pipe to an
8” sewer main, replaced the existing sewer manholes, and connected the new line into the
main at Site Drive and Central Avenue.  The Project was completed to the satisfaction of the
City Engineer, and Big Ben has completed the Project and fulfilled its obligations to the City
pursuant to the Project Contract.  Therefore, staff is recommending the City Council accept
the Project as complete and authorize the City Clerk to record a Notice of Completion
(Attachment B).  Additionally, staff is recommending authorizing the City Clerk to release the
Payment and Performance Bonds upon notification from the Public Works Department.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Michael Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer
Concurrence: Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director

Attachments
Location Map 
Notice of Completion 





RECORDING REQUESTED BY

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO

Name City of Brea

Street
Address 1 Civic Center Circle

City &
State Brea, CA 92821
Zip

Free recording requested per Government Code Section 27383. SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk, City of Brea Notice of Completion
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. The undersigned is the owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described.
2. The full name of the undersigned is ______City of Brea______________________________________ (NAME)
3. The full address of the undersigned is ____1 Civic Center Circle_______________________________________________
______________________________________Brea, CA 
92821___________________________________________________ 
(NUMBER AND STREET, CITY, STATE, ZIP)
4. The nature of the title or the undersigned is ___________Owner-In-

Fee_________________________________________ 
5. The full names and full addresses of all persons, if any, who hold title with the undersigned as joint tenants or as tenants in 

common are:

Names Addresses
____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
____________________________________ ______________________________________ 

6. The names of the predecessors in interest of the undersigned, if the property was transferred subsequent to the commence 
of the work of improvement herein referred to are (OR IF NO TRANSFER WAS MADE, INSERT THE WORD “none”):

Names Addresses
____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
____________________________________ ______________________________________ 

7. A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on April 22, 2020.
8. The name of the original contractor, if any, for the work of improvement was Big Ben, Inc.

(NAME OF CONTRACTOR, OR IF NO CONTRACTOR FOR THE WORK OF IMPROVEMENT AS A WHOLE, INSERT THE 
WORD “none”). [IF NOTICE COVERS COMPLETION OF CONTRACT FOR ONLY PART OF THE WORK OF 
IMPROVEMENT, ADD:  The kind of work done or material furnished was Sewer Main Replacement.

9. The property on which the work of improvement was completed is in the City of Brea, County of Orange, State of 
California, and is described as follows:  375-395 Central Avenue Sewer Improvements , CIP No. 7627.

10. The street address of the said property is 375-395 Central Avenue.

Dated: 2020.

___________________________________________(SIGNATURE)
Michael S. Ho P.E., Deputy Director/City Engineer (TYPED NAME)

VERIFICATION
I, the undersigned, say:
I am the person who signed the foregoing notice.  I have read the above notice and know its contents, and the facts stated 
therein are true of my own knowledge.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed at Brea, California, this day of , 2020.

__________________________________________ (SIGNATURE)
Michael S. Ho P.E., Deputy Director/City Engineer



  4. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Approve Plans and Specifications, Receive Bids, and Award Contract with Big
Ben, Inc. in the amount of $5,138,722.64 for the North Hills Tract Water
Improvements and Northwood Avenue Main Water and Sewer Replacement,
Project Nos. 7459 7460, 7431 and 7628

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Plans and Specifications;1.
Receive bids, Award Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Big
Ben, Inc., in the amount of $5,138,722.64; and,

2.

Authorize the City Engineer to issue Change Orders up to a "not to exceed" amount of
10% of the Contract Price.

3.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The North Hills Tract Improvement Project consists the following four (4) Capital
Improvement Projects.

7459 – North Hills West Tract Water Improvements
7460 – North Hills East Tract Water Improvements
7431 – Northwood Water Main Replacement
7628 – Northwood Avenue Sewer Replacement

The scope of work for the Project includes, but is not limited to: replacing approximately
15,600 linear feet of existing water mains, replacing 530 linear feet of existing sewer mains,
replacement of water main valves and fittings, water services connections, cap/plug old water
main, grinding AC pavement, removing AC pavement, placement of AC pavement, slurry
seal, re-striping, updating ADA ramps, and adjusting water valve and utility manholes. The
project will be in two phases to allow minimal impacts during construction.

Final Plans and Specifications (“Bid Documents”) were advertised for bids on the CIPlist.com
website and subsequently published in the Star Progress paper on March 12, 2020, and
again on March 19, 2020, 13 business days prior to bid opening. A copy of the Bid
Documents are available at the City Clerk’s office for review. There was one addendum to
the Specifications, which provided bidder clarifications to several Bidders Request for
Interpretation submittals, replaced Bid Schedule B, and provided additional clarifications on
the bid proposal submittal process with respect to the Covid-19 situation. Therefore, staff
recommends City Council approve the Plans and Specifications with Addendum No. 1 as bid.



On March 31, 2020, staff received a total of 17 bid proposals. Soon thereafter, staff tabulated
the bid proposals and determined that the apparent low bid amount was $5,138,722.64 from
Big Ben, Inc. (“Big Ben”) from Irvine, California (see Attachment B). Furthermore, one of the
Bidders (Ferreira) was disqualified due to the fact that they did not use Addendum No. 1
Revised Bid Schedule B as part of their bid proposal. 

Below are the results of the 16 qualified responsive bids received within Table 1, not
including the disqualified bidder (Ferreira): 

Table 1 – Total Bid Summary
Bidder
Number

Bidder Amount Bid

1 Big Ben, Inc. $5,138,722.64
2 Sully Miller Contracting Company $5,198,000.00
3 Stephen Doreck Equipment Rentals, Inc. $5,477,147,25
4 Kana Pipeline, Inc. $5,682,030.00
5 Teichert Energy Utilities Group Co. $5,764,092.00
6 T.E. Roberts, Inc. $5,838,067.96
7 Vido Artukovich & Son, Inc. $6,024,872.95
8 Lucas Builders, Inc. $6,039,571.66
9 Gentry Brothers, Inc. $6,109,097.60
10 Mamco, Inc. dba Alabbasi $6,177,777.00
11 JA Salazar Construction & Supply Corp. $6,273,589.68
12 Boudreau Pipeline $6,457,607,87
13 Colich & Sons L.P. $7,100,612.60
14 Lone Rock, Inc. $7,558,831.86
15 Dominguez General Engineering, Inc. $7,594,956.15

16 Christensen Brothers General Engineering,
Inc. $7,809,413.90

Engineer's Estimate $6,460,000.00

As depicted within Table 1, the apparent lowest bid price from Big Ben, Inc. was less than
the Engineer’s Estimate (EE) by approximately $1,321,000. Based on the other bid amounts,
the EE was within the top range of bids and the lowest three bids were very competitive. 

Big Ben, Inc. has been in the construction business since 1999 and has completed
construction of similar pipeline improvement projects for the City of Fullerton, City of Covina,
and City of Sierra Madre. They are also completing the 375-395 Central Avenue Sewer
Improvements for the City of Brea. Their California Contractor’s license 774444 – A (General
Engineering) and Department of Industrial Relations registration number 1000007466 has
been verified by staff and their bid package met the City requirements. In addition, staff
contacted the Cities of Covina and Fullerton, where the contractor received a favorable
review. Based on the aforementioned bid review, staff has determined Big Ben, Inc. to be a
responsive and responsible bidder. Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council



responsive and responsible bidder. Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council
consider awarding a Construction Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder,
Big Ben, Inc. in the amount of $5,138,722.64 (see Attachment C).

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The total cost for the Project is estimated at $6,523,595 based on the apparent low bid
amount of $5,138,722.64, a 10% contingency, design, and construction engineering costs. 
The approved budget within the FY 2020-2021 CIP for the Project is $6,682,000, which
includes CIP 7431, 7459, 7460, and 7628 funding.  The sources of funds within the approved
budget for the four CIP projects are from the Water Utility Fund (420), Gas Tax (220),
Measure M2 (260), and Sewer Utility Fund (430).  There is sufficient approved funding in the
combined CIP projects for the Project to complete the estimated expenses, with
approximately $158,405 remaining in the Project funding.  Therefore, there is no impact to
the General Fund from this Project.
 
The Project will: replace various water mains and a sewer main on Northwood Avenue from
Sandalwood Drive to La Canada Drive; construct various water and sewer infrastructure;
rehabilitate the pavement on various streets; and update ADA ramps within the North Hills
Tract Subdivision.  If the City Council approves staff recommendations, the Project is
anticipated to start construction in early August 2020 and be completed by April 2021.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Michael Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer
Concurrence: Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director 

Attachments
Location Maps 
Attachment B - Proposal 
Attachment C - Construction Contract Agreement 



111

0123456789





































































ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 1 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT  

[BREA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT NORTH HILLS WEST AND EAST TRACT 

PROJECT NO. 7459 & 7460] 

This Construction Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated  _________________, 20__ for 

reference purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation, and 

[Big Ben, Inc.], a [California] [Corporation] (“Contractor”).  Contractor’s CSLB license number 

is 774444.  Contractor’s DIR registration number is 1000007466. 

R E C I T A L S 

A. City duly solicited, received, publicly opened, and declared bids for the following 

public works project:  BREA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT NORTH HILLS WEST AND 

EAST TRACT, PROJECT NO. 7459 & 7460 (“Project”). 

B. City selected Contractor as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the 

Project. 

C. The parties are executing this Agreement to provide for Contractor’s furnishing of 

labor, equipment, and material for the construction of the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, City 

and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK:  Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, 

tools, materials, appliances, and equipment and shall do the work for the construction of the BREA 

WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT NORTH HILLS WEST AND EAST TRACT, PROJECT 

NO. 7459 & 7460 (“Project”). Such work shall be performed in accordance with contract 

documents for this Project on file in the office of the City Engineer and in accordance with bid 

prices, plans, and specifications more fully described in Section 4, below, and in accordance with 

the instructions of the Public Works Director (collectively, “Work”).  Contractor shall at all times 

comply with applicable laws and City policies. 

2. CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT: 

A. As total and complete compensation for satisfactorily completing the Work, 

City shall pay to Contractor the prices set forth in Contractor’s bid amount of $ 5,138,722.64. 

Progress Payments shall be made for each portion of the Work satisfactorily completed. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall be authorized to withhold a retention from payments in 

the maximum amount permitted by law.  

B. At the written request and expense of Contractor, securities equivalent to 

any moneys withheld by City to ensure performance of this Agreement shall be deposited with 

City, or with a state or federally chartered bank in the State of California as the escrow agent, that 

shall then pay those moneys to Contractor. Upon satisfactory completion of this Agreement, the 

securities shall be returned to Contractor. Alternatively, Contractor may request that City make 

payment of retentions earned directly to the escrow agent at the expense of Contractor. At the 

expense of Contractor, Contractor may direct the investment of the payments into securities, and 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 2 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

Contractor shall receive the interest earned on the investments upon the same terms provided for 

securities deposited by Contractor. 

C. Upon satisfactory completion of this Agreement, Contractor shall receive 

from the escrow agent all securities, interest, and payments received by the escrow agent from City 

pursuant to the terms of this Section. Securities eligible for investment shall include those listed in 

Government Code Section 16430, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-bearing 

demand deposit accounts, standby letters of credit, or any other security to which the parties agree 

in writing.  Contractor shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for moneys 

withheld and shall receive any interest thereon. 

D. If Contractor elects to receive interest on moneys withheld in retention by 

City, then Contractor shall, at the request of any subcontractor performing more than five percent 

of Contractor’s total bid amount, make that option available to the subcontractor regarding any 

moneys withheld in retention by Contractor from the subcontractor.  Further mandatory details are 

provided in Public Contract Code Section 22300(d). 

E. The escrow agreement for security deposits in lieu of retention shall be 

substantially similar to the form provided in Public Contract Code Section 22300(f). 

3. CUSTOMER CARE:  Contractor, while fulfilling the terms of this Agreement, 

shall provide exceptional customer care.  Any negative contact with City staff, residents, 

businesses, visitors, or other contractors shall be reported by Contractor immediately to City.  

Contractor’s management and supervisory personnel shall intercede to resolve or mitigate the 

negative contact in conjunction with City staff.  The parties may agree in advance to a single person 

contact, a representative of either City or Contractor, for the investigation and response to 

complaints. 

4. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS:  The plans and specifications referenced in 

Section 1, above, the Notice Inviting Sealed Bids attached hereto, the Instructions to Bidders 

(including attachments), and, unless omitted from such Notice, the 2015 edition of “Standard 

Specifications for Public Works Construction” (“Standard Specifications”), as amended by the 

Contract Documents, all of which are incorporated by reference herein, and this written agreement 

(collectively, “Contract Documents”), shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties.  

This Agreement is intended to require a complete and finished piece of work, and Contractor shall 

perform all work necessary to properly complete the Work and the Project in accordance with 

applicable laws, whether set out specifically in the Contract Documents or not.  Should it be 

ascertained that any inconsistency exists between any of the Contract Documents, the provisions 

of this Agreement shall control. 

5. COMPLETION DATE / LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:  

A. Contractor shall complete Schedule A of the Project within 90 working days 

from the date of the Notice to Proceed (“Schedule A Completion Date”) issued for Schedule A 

and shall complete Schedule B of the Project within 120 working days from the date of the Notice 

to Proceed issued for Schedule B (“Schedule B Completion Date”).  The Total Contract Working 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 3 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

Days shall not exceed 210 Working Days from the date of the Notice To Proceed issued for 

Schedule A of the Project (“Project Completion Date”)   

B. Liquidated damages will be assessed in the amount of $750.00 for each 

calendar day in excess of the contract time for the Project beyond the Schedule A Completion 

Date noted on the Notice to Proceed issued for Schedule A. Liquidated damages will be assessed 

in the amount of $1,200.00 for each calendar day in excess of the contract time for the Project 

beyond the Project Completion Date noted within the Notice to Proceed issued for Schedule A 

and Schedule B.  City may deduct liquidated damages from any monies due or that may become 

due Contractor.  Progress payments made after the completion date shall not constitute a waiver 

of liquidated damages.   

6. TERMINATION: 

A. City may terminate this Agreement for convenience without penalty at any 

time upon 30 days’ written notice to Contractor.  In such event, City shall pay Contractor for all 

services satisfactorily rendered prior to date of termination, which in any case shall not exceed the 

total contract price, and such payment shall be in full satisfaction of all services rendered. 

B. If Contractor breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 

seven days of written notice, then City may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause. 

7. INSURANCE:   

A. Contractor shall not commence work until it has obtained all insurance 

required hereunder from a company or companies acceptable to City, nor shall Contractor allow 

any subcontractor to commence work on its subcontract until all insurance required of the 

subcontractor has been obtained.  Contractor shall take maintain the following policies of 

insurance: 

i. Compensation insurance:  Before beginning work, Contractor shall 

furnish to City a certificate of insurance as proof that it has taken out full compensation insurance 

for all persons whom Contractor may employ directly or through subcontractors in carrying out 

the Work, in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Such insurance shall be 

maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement.  Further, such 

policy of insurance shall provide that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City and 

its elected officials, officers, employees and agents.  In accordance with the provisions of Labor 

Code Section 3700, every contractor shall secure the payment of compensation to its employees.  

Contractor, prior to commencing work, shall sign and file with City a certification as follows: 

“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 

every employer to be insured against liability for worker’s compensation or to 

undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will 

comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of work of this 

contract.” 

ii. For all operations of Contractor or any subcontractor in performing 

the Work, insurance with the following minimum limits and coverage: 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 4 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

a. Commercial General Liability (occurrence) - for bodily 

injury, death, and property damage products/completed operations and all other activities 

undertaken by Contractor in the performance of this Agreement. 

b. Comprehensive Automobile Liability (occurrence) - for 

bodily injury, death, and property damage, insuring against all liability arising out of the use of 

any vehicle. 

c. Owner’s and Contractor’s Protective (occurrence) - for 

bodily injury, death, and property damage arising out of any activities undertaken by Contractor 

in the performance of this Agreement. 

d. Other required insurance, endorsement, or exclusions, as 

required by the Contract Documents. 

B. The policies of insurance required in paragraph (A)(ii) above shall have no 

less than the following limits of coverage: 

i. $2,000,000 for bodily injury or death; 

ii. $2,000,000 for property damage; and 

iii. The total of the limits specified in subsections (i) and (ii) above, 

where a combined single limit is provided. 

C. Each such policy of insurance required in paragraph (A)(ii) above shall: 

i. Be subject to no deductible amount unless otherwise provided, or 

approved in writing by City. 

ii. Be issued by an insurance company approved in writing by City, 

which is admitted and licensed to do business in the State of California and which is rated A/VII 

or better according to the most recent A.M. Best Co. Rating Guide. 

iii. Name as additional insureds City, its elected officials, officers, 

employees, attorneys, and agents, and any other parties including subcontractors, specified by City 

to be included. 

iv. Specify that it acts as primary insurance and that no insurance held 

or owned by the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under such 

policy. 

v. Specify that it applies separately to each insured against whom claim 

is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 

vi. Contain a clause substantially in the following words: 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 5 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

“It is hereby understood and agreed that this policy may not be canceled nor the 

amount of coverage thereof reduced until 30 days after receipt by the City of Brea 

of written notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage as evidenced by 

receipt of such notice by registered letter.” 

vii. Specify that any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions 

of the required policy, including breaches of warranty, shall not affect the coverage required to be 

provided. 

viii. Specify that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against the 

named additional insureds.  

ix. Specify that any and all costs of adjusting and/or defending any 

claim against any insured, including court costs and attorneys’ fees, shall be paid in addition to 

and shall not deplete any policy limits. 

x. Otherwise be in form satisfactory to City. 

D. Prior to commencing performance under this Agreement, Contractor shall 

furnish City with original endorsements, or copies of each required policy, effecting and 

evidencing the insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  The endorsements shall be signed 

by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on its behalf.  All endorsements or 

policies shall be received and approved by City before Contractor commences performance.  If 

performance of this Agreement shall extend beyond one year, Contractor shall provide City with 

the required policies or endorsements evidencing renewal of the required policies of insurance 

prior to their expiration of any required policies of insurance. 

E. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (i) all the 

insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Contractor; or (ii) the minimum 

insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in this Agreement; whichever is greater. Any 

insurance proceeds in excess of or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum 

required limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No representation 

is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the 

obligations of Contractor  under this Agreement. 

8. LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE: 

A. Contractor acknowledges that the Work required is a “public work” as 

defined in Labor Code Section 1720 et seq.  Contractor is required to pay not less than the general 

prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in locality in which the public 

work is performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and 

overtime work.  In that regard, the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the State 

of California is required to and has determined such general prevailing rates of per diem wages.  

The applicable prevailing rates can be found on the following website:  

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/pwd/.  For federally funded projects, Davis-Bacon requirements 

apply, and the appropriate wage determinations can be found in the project specifications.  

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/pwd/


ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 6 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

Contractor shall ascertain all prevailing wages applicable to the Project and shall cause a copy of 

such wage determinations to be posted at the job site. 

B. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1775, Contractor and all subcontractors 

shall, as a penalty to City, forfeit not more than $200 for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 

each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 

Relations for the work or craft in which the worker is employed for work done under this 

Agreement by Contractor or, except as provided in Section 1775(b), by any subcontractor. 

C. Contractor shall comply with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code 

Section 1777.5 concerning the employment of apprentices on public works projects.  Contractor 

shall be responsible for compliance with Section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupations.  Prior 

to commencing the Work, Contractor shall provide City with a copy of the information submitted 

to any applicable apprenticeship program.  Within 60 days after concluding work pursuant to this 

Agreement, Contractor and each of its subcontractors shall submit to City a verified statement of 

the journeyman and apprentice hours performed under this Agreement. 

D. Eight hours of labor shall constitute a legal day’s work for all workmen 

employed in the execution of this Agreement, and Contractor and all subcontractors shall comply 

with and be governed by the laws of the State of California having to do with working hours. 

E. Contractor and all subcontractors shall, as a penalty to City, forfeit $25 for 

each worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by Contractor or a subcontractor for 

each calendar day during which the worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours 

in any one calendar day and 40 hours in any one calendar week in violation of the Labor Code. 

F. Contractor shall comply with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code 

Section 1776, which requires Contractor and each subcontractor to:  (i) keep accurate payroll 

records and verify such records in writing under penalty of perjury, as specified in Section 1776; 

(ii) certify and make such payroll records available for inspection as provided by Section 1776; 

and (iii) inform City of the location of the records. Contractor and each subcontractor shall comply 

with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code Section 1771.4(a)(3), which requires that each 

contractor and each subcontractor shall furnish the records specified in Section 1776 directly to 

the Labor Commissioner at least monthly, in a format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. 

G. For every subcontractor who will perform work on the Project, Contractor 

shall be responsible for such subcontractor’s compliance with Labor Code Sections 1771, 1775, 

1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815, and Contractor shall include in the written contract between it and 

each subcontractor copies of Labor Code Sections 1771, 1775, 1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815 and 

a requirement that each subcontractor shall comply with these statutes.  Contractor shall be 

required to take all actions necessary to enforce such contractual provisions and ensure each 

subcontractor’s compliance, including conducting a periodic review of the certified payroll records 

of the subcontractor.  Upon becoming aware of a failure of the subcontractor to pay its workers 

the specified prevailing rate of wages, Contractor shall diligently take corrective action to halt or 

rectify the failure. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 7 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

H. Contractor truthfully represents that at the time Contractor submitted its bid 

for this Project, and thereafter, Contractor possessed, and now possesses the required license(s) 

from the State Contractors State Licensing Board, and as required in the Contract Documents, as 

well as all permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of any nature that are legally required 

of Contractor to practice its trade(s) and complete the Project.  Contractor agrees to not be debarred 

at any time through the duration of this Agreement.  Contractor has investigated and represents 

and will ensure that all subcontractors possessed and now possess a valid specialty trade license in 

its trade, as well as all permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of any nature that are legally 

required of the subcontractor to practice its trade during the term of this Agreement and at the time 

Contractor’s bid was submitted.  All general building contractor licensees must comply with 

Business and Professions Code Section 7057.  Contractor and all subcontractors must comply with 

business license requirements of City.  Contractor shall not perform work with any debarred 

subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section 1777.1 or 1777.7. 

9. UNRESOLVED DISPUTES:   

A. In the event that a dispute arises between the parties regarding whether the 

conditions materially differ, involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in 

Contractor’s cost of or time required for performance of any part of the Work, Contractor shall not 

be excused from the Completion Date, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the 

Agreement.  Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided that pertain to the resolution of 

disputes and protests between the parties.  In the event of any dispute or controversy with City 

over any matter whatsoever, Contractor shall not cause any delay or cessation in or of work, but 

shall proceed with the performance of the work in dispute.  This includes disputed time extension 

requests and prices for changes.  The disputed work will be categorized as an “unresolved dispute” 

and payment, if any, shall be as later determined by agreement or a court of law.  Contractor shall 

keep accurate, detailed records of all disputed work, claims and other disputed matters.   

B. All claims arising out of or related to the Contract Documents or this 

Project, and the consideration and payment of such claims, are subject to the Government Claims 

Act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) with regard to filing claims.  All such claims are also 

subject to the dispute procedures set forth in Public Contract Code Section 9204 and Public 

Contract Code Section 20104 et seq., to the extent each is applicable.  This Agreement hereby 

incorporates those provisions as through fully set forth herein.  Thus, Contractor or any 

subcontractor must file a claim in accordance with the Government Claims Act as prerequisite to 

filing a construction claim in compliance with Section 9204 and Section 20104 et seq. (if 

applicable), and must then adhere to Section 20104 et seq. and Section 9204, as applicable, with 

respect to any asserted “claim,” as individually defined in those Sections.  

10. ANTI-TRUST CLAIMS:  In entering into this Agreement, Contractor offers and 

agrees to assign to City all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 

Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Business and 

Professions Code Section 16700 et seq.) arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 

pursuant to this Agreement.  This assignment shall be made and become effective at the time City 

tenders final payment to Contractor without further action or acknowledgment by the parties. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 8 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

11. THIRD PARTY CLAIMS: Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9201, City 

has full authority to compromise or otherwise settle any claim relating to this Agreement at any 

time. City shall timely notify Contractor of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to this 

Agreement.  City shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in providing the 

notification required by Public Contract Code Section 9201(b).  

12. RIGHT TO AUDIT:  City or its representative shall have the option of inspecting 

and/or auditing all records and other written materials used by Contractor in preparing its billings 

to City as a condition precedent to any payment to Contractor.  Contractor will promptly furnish 

documents requested by City. Additionally, pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, if this 

Agreement involves the expenditure of public funds in excess of $10,000, Contractor shall be 

subject to State Auditor examination and audit at the request of City or as part of any audit of City, 

for a period of three years after final payment under this Agreement. 

13. TRENCHING AND EXCAVATIONS:   

A. If the Project involves trenching more than four feet deep, Contractor shall 

promptly and before the following conditions are disturbed notify City in writing of any:  (i) 

material that Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in California 

Health and Safety Code Section 25117, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or 

Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law; (ii) subsurface or latent 

physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated; or (iii) unknown physical conditions 

at the site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and 

generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this Agreement.  City 

shall investigate the conditions, and if City finds that the conditions do materially differ or do 

involve hazardous waste and cause a decrease or increase in Contractor’s cost of or the time 

required for performance of any part of the Work, City shall issue a change order. 

B. In addition, whenever work under this Agreement  involves an estimated 

expenditure in excess of $25,000 for the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more 

in depth, Contractor shall submit for acceptance by City or by a registered civil or structural 

engineer employed by City to whom authority to accept has been delegated, in advance of 

excavation, a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to 

be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation, of such 

trench or trenches.  If such plan varies from the shoring system standards established by the 

Construction Safety Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, the plan shall be prepared by a 

registered civil or structural engineer employed by Contractor, and all costs therefor shall be 

included in the contract price herein for completion of the Work as set forth in this Agreement.  

Nothing in this provision shall be deemed to allow the use of a shoring, sloping, or other protective 

system less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders.  Nothing in this 

provision shall be construed to impose tort liability on City or on any City officer, agent, or 

employee.  All plans, plan review, processing, and shoring costs are Contractor’s financial and 

legal responsibility. 

14. UTILITIES:  City acknowledges its responsibilities under Government Code 

Section 4215 concerning existing utilities. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 9 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

15. LOCATION OF EXISTING ELEMENTS:  The methods used and costs 

involved to locate existing elements, points of connection and all construction methods are 

Contractor’s sole responsibility.  Accuracy of information furnished, as to existing conditions, is 

not guaranteed by City.  Contractor must strictly comply with all applicable requirements of 

Government Code Section 4216 et seq. Prior to commencement of the Work,  Contractor, at its 

sole expense, must make all investigations necessary to determine locations of existing elements, 

which may include contacting Underground Service Alert and other private underground locating 

firm(s), utilizing specialized locating equipment, hand trenching, or both.  Contractor must provide 

City with every Dig Alert Identification Number issued by Underground Service Alert during the 

course of the Project.  Contractor shall be responsible for preserving the integrity of the existing 

underground utilities and elements at the site. 

16. CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY:   

A. City and its officers, agents, and employees shall not be answerable or 

accountable in any manner for any loss or damage that may happen to the Work or any part thereof, 

or for any of the materials or other things used or employed in performing the Work; or for injury 

or damage to any person or persons, either workers, employees of Contractor or its subcontractors 

or the public, or for damage to adjoining or other property from any cause whatsoever arising out 

of or in connection with the performance of the Work.  Contractor shall be responsible for all 

damage or injury to any person or property resulting from defects or obstructions or from any 

cause whatsoever, except the sole negligence or willful misconduct of City, its employees, 

servants, or independent contractors who are directly responsible to City during the progress of 

the Work or at any time before its completion and final acceptance. 

B. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Contractor will defend, 

indemnify, and hold City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

(collectively, “Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any and all actions, claims, liens, 

stop notices, damages to persons or property, penalties, obligations, and liabilities that may be 

asserted or claimed by any person, firm, entity, corporation, political subdivision, or other entity 

in any way arising out of or in connection with the acts, omissions, willful misconduct, work, 

operations, breach of this Agreement, violation of the Labor Code or any other code or regulation, 

and/or activities of Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors, or invitees in or related to 

the performance of this Agreement (collectively, “Claims”), whether or not there is concurrent 

passive or active negligence on the part of any of the Indemnitees, but excluding such actions, 

claims, damages to persons or property, penalties, obligations, or liabilities arising from the sole 

negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnitees, as determined by a final court decision 

or agreement of the parties.   

C. Contractor will defend any action or actions filed in connection with any 

Claims and will pay all costs and expenses, including actual attorneys’ fees incurred in connection 

therewith. 

D. Contractor will promptly pay any judgment rendered against Contractor or 

any of the Indemnitees as a result of any Claims, and Contractor agrees to indemnify and save and 

hold the Indemnitees harmless therefrom. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 10 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

E. In the event any Indemnitee is made a party to any action or proceeding 

filed or prosecuted against Contractor in connection with any Claims, Contractor shall pay to the 

Indemnitees any and all costs and expenses incurred by the Indemnitees in such action or 

proceeding together with actual attorneys’ fees. 

F. So much of the money due to Contractor under and by virtue of this 

Agreement, as shall be considered necessary by City, may be retained by City until Contractor has 

satisfied its indemnity obligations under this Section. 

17. ASSIGNMENT:  Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this 

Agreement or any part thereof, whether by assignment or novation, without City’s prior written 

consent.  Any purported assignment without written consent shall be null, void, and of no effect, 

and Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify City and its officers, officials, 

employees, agents, and representatives with respect to any claim, demand, or action arising from 

or relating to any unauthorized assignment. 

18. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS:  Contractor represents, covenants 

and agrees that:  (i) Contractor is qualified and capable of furnishing the labor, materials, and 

expertise necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement; (ii) there are no obligations, commitments, or impediments of any kind that will 

limit or prevent Contractor’s full performance under this Agreement; (iii) there is no litigation 

pending against Contractor or any owner or officer thereof, involving alleged theft, dishonesty, or 

fraud involving a public works project, and neither Contractor nor any owner or officer thereof is 

the subject of any criminal investigation or proceeding involving a public works project; and (iv) 

to Contractor’s actual knowledge, neither Contractor nor any owner or officer thereof has been 

convicted of a felony involving theft, dishonesty, or fraud in connection with a public works 

project, within the last 10 years. 

19. NOTICES:  Except as otherwise required by law, any notice, payment, or other 

communication authorized or required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

received on (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during City’s 

regular business hours or (ii) on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, 

postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or at such other address as one party may notify the 

other: 

To City:  

Director of Public Works  

City of Brea 

1 Civic Center Circle 

Brea, California 92821 

 

To Contractor: 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 11 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION:  No discrimination shall be made in the employment 

of persons upon public works because of the race, color, or religion of such persons, or on any 

other basis specified in Government Code Section 12940.  Every contractor for public works 

violating this section is subject to all the penalties imposed for a violation of Labor Code Section 

1720 et seq. in accordance with the provisions of Section 1735 of such Code. 

21. APPLICABLE LAW:  The validity, interpretation, and performance of this 

Agreement shall be controlled by and construed under the laws of the State of California, excluding 

the choice of law rules.  Venue for any such action relating to this Agreement shall be in the Orange 

County Superior Court. 

22. ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  In the event that any action or proceeding is brought by 

either party to enforce any term or provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover 

its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred with respect thereto. 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including the Contract Documents, 

and any other documents incorporated herein by specific reference, represents the entire and 

integrated agreement between the parties.  This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written 

negotiations, representations or agreements.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended, 

nor any provision or breach waived, except in a writing signed by both parties which expressly 

refers to this Agreement. 

24. NON-WAIVER OF TERMS:  Waiver by either party of any one or more of the 

conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of 

performance under this Agreement.  In no event shall the making by City of any payment to 

Contractor constitute or be construed as a waiver by City of any breach of covenant, or any default 

which may then exist on the part of Contractor, and the making of any such payment by City shall 

in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to City with regard to such breach or 

default. 

25. AUTHORITY:  Any person executing this Agreement on behalf of Contractor 

warrants and represents that he or she has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of 

Contractor and has the authority to bind Contractor to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

26. COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 

duplicate originals, or both, each of which is deemed to be an original for all purposes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 12 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Brea Water Main Replacement 13 of 13    Project No. 7459-60 
North Hills West and East Tract 
 2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the parties have caused their authorized representatives 

to sign below. 

 

BIG BEN, INC. 

 

 

      

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

□ Chairperson □ President □ Vice President  □ Secretary □ Asst. Secretary  

       □ Chief Finance Officer □ Asst. Treasurer 

 

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed 

unless the signatory holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF BREA 

 

 

 

By: _____________________________   

 Mayor 

 

 

 

Attest: _____________________________   

 City Clerk 

 



  5. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Maintenance Agreement for Slurry Seal Program

RECOMMENDATION
Accept proposal and approve agreement with Doug Martin Contracting Company, Inc.
for the citywide street slurry seal program for an annual amount not-to-exceed
$200,000; and

1.

Authorize City Manager to approve up to four (4) - one (1) year extensions at an annual
amount not-to-exceed $200,000.

2.

Cost of living adjustment shall not to exceed 3% annually. Rate Changes: The fee
schedule in Proposal shall not be revised during the term of the Contract (including any
extension periods) without prior approval by the City Council.

3.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
In May 2020, a Request for Proposals for the City’s Annual Slurry Seal Program was posted
to the CIPlist.com website.  As a result, City received four proposals from Roy Allen Slurry
Seal, Doug Martin Contracting Company, All American Asphalt and Pavement Coatings
Company.  The proposals were reviewed and evaluated based on their qualifications and
abilities to perform the work at a competitive price. The proposals were also reviewed for
conformance with City of Brea’s requirements for high quality work and responsiveness to
production goals.

After review of the proposal staff ranked the bidders as follows: 

Doug Martin Contracting Company, Inc.1.
Roy Allen Slurry Seal Inc.2.
Pavement Coatings Co.3.
All American Asphalt4.

Based upon the review of the proposals submitted (bid pricing information attached),
staff recommends that Doug Martin Contracting Company, Inc. is awarded the contract for
slurry seal maintenance for a term of one (1) year with the option for up to four (4) - additional
one (1) year extensions.  Selection was made based on their ability to place adequate daily
tonnage, pricing, overall stability of the company, company location, above-average
equipment, and the excellent customer service they provide for the City of Brea.  The owner,
Doug Martin, lives in the City of Brea and his company is located in the City of La Habra.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT



The City of Brea budgets $200,000 annually for the slurry seal project.  No additional funding
is needed.  This is a budgeted Capital Improvement Program under 510-7312 using Measure
M funds.  Cost of living adjustment shall not to exceed 3% annually. Rate Changes: The fee
schedule in Proposal shall not be revised during the term of the Contract (including any
extension periods) without prior approval by the City Council.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Will Wenz, Public Works Superintendent
Concurrence: Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director

Attachments
Agreement 
Pricing Information 























18. EXTENSION OF TERM AND PRICE ADJUSTMENT: This
agreement shall be renewable for up to four (4) successive one (1) year periods 
upon a written consent to renewal, duly and properly executed by each party 
hereto, being filed with City's Public Works Director or his designated 
representative at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then present 
agreement. In the case of any such renewal, each and every term and condition 
of this agreement, except the sum of money to be paid to the Contractor 
specified herein, shall apply to the performance of the work specified herein 
during the effective period of such renewal. The sum of money paid to the 
Contractor may be increased by a percent equal to the percentage in direct labor 
and material costs to the Contractor. Each year prior to the extension of the 
agreement, a survey will be conducted by the Contractor and City as to the cost 
of slurry per extra long ton and Contractor's direct labor cost. If the cost of slurry 
per extra long ton has increased over that of the first or previous 12 month period 
of the agreement, and labor cost can be documented to have increased to the 
satisfaction of the City of Brea, than at the sole discretion of the City, the contract 
may be extended for one additional year at the adjusted price. 

Cost of living adjustment shall not to exceed 3% annually. Rate 
Changes: The fee schedule in Proposal shall not be revised during the term of 
the Contract (including any extension periods) without prior approval by City's 
City Council. 

19. TERMINATION OR ABANDONMENT: This agreement may
be terminated by City without cause, upon the giving of a written "Notice of 
Termination" to Contractor at least fifteen (15) days prior to the termination date 
specified in said notice. Contractor may terminate this agreement only for cause. 

20. ATTORNEYS' FEES: In the event that any action or
proceeding is brought by either party to enforce any term or provision of 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover its reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs incurred with respect thereto. 

19. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused
these presents to be duly executed with all the formalities required by law on the 
respective dates set forth opposite their signatures. 

State of California 
Contractor's License No. 4 70131 C-12 

Doug Martin Contracting Company, Inc 

Company Name 

11 

Exp. 03/31/21 

June 10, 2020 

Date 





2020 Street Slurry Pricing

Doug Martin Roy Allen
Pavement 
Coatings

All American 
Asphalt

w/o sweeping
Slurry Type
Type I 221.06$        240.00$        301.00$          448.00$          
Type II 202.37$        216.00$        264.00$          418.00$          
Type III 170.27$        195.00$        254.00$          410.00$          
Rubberized 270.66$        275.00$        276.00$          818.00$          
with sweeping
Type I 226.07$        253.00$        314.00$          478.00$          
Type II 207.87$        226.00$        275.00$          448.00$          
Type III 176.50$        205.00$        266.00$          440.00$          



  6. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Approve Plans and Specifications, Receive Bids and Award Contract with R.J.
Noble Company in the amount of $458,507.50 for the Alley Rehabilitation
Projects CIP 7319, 7320, 7321

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Plans and Specifications;1.
Receive bids, Award Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, RJ
Noble Company, in the amount of $458,507.50; and,

2.

Authorize the City Engineer to issue Change Orders up to a "not to exceed" amount of
10% of the Contract Price, however, limited to the amount of funding available in the
approved project budget.

3.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The Alley Rehabilitation Project consists of three (3) Capital Improvement Projects. These
projects will rehabilitate the alley west of Flower Avenue between Date Street and Imperial
Highway (PN 7319); the alley west of Sycamore Avenue between Elm Street and Date Street
(PN 7320); and the alley west of Walnut Avenue between Acacia Street and Fir Street (PN
7321). The existing pavement has exceeded its service life and is in poor condition. The
selection of these alleys for rehabilitation is based on the ranking in accordance with the
City's Pavement Management Plan (PMP). Due to similar type of work, combining these
projects will result in more competitive bids and will save time in project administration.

Final Plans and Specifications ("Bid Documents") were advertised for bids on the CIPlist.com
website and subsequently published in the Star Progress paper in accordance with the
California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting (CUPCCA). A copy of the Bid
Documents are available in the City Clerk's office for review. There was one addendum to
the Plans and Specifications, which provided clarification regarding the bid opening process
and other miscellaneous modifications to the Specifications. Therefore, staff recommends
City Council approve the final Plans and Specifications with Addendum No. 1 as bid. 

On June 1, 2020, staff received a total of nine bid proposals. Staff then tabulated the bid
proposals and determined that the apparent low bid amount was $458,507.50 from R.J.
Noble Company from Orange, California. 
Below are the results of the nine bids received:



Below are the results of the nine bids received:

Table 1 - Total Bid Summary
Bid Number Bidder Amount Bid

1. R.J. Noble Company $458,507.50
2. Onyx Paving Company, Inc. $476,000.00
3. All American Asphalt $518,665.00
4. Hardy & Harper, Inc. $590,000.00
5. United Paving Co. $604,808.37
6. Horizon Construction Co. $617,939.00
7. Palp, Inc. (Excel Paving) $642,530.00
8. EBS General Engineering $673,789.00
9. Pavewest $760,215.00

Engineer's Estimate $680,450.00

R.J. Noble Company has been in the construction business for over 70 years and has
completed construction of similar improvement projects for the City of Anaheim, City of
Stanton, and City of Irvine. The company has a valid contractor' s license and has received a
satisfactory rating according to the references. If awarded, construction could begin in
August 2020 and take approximately three (3) months to complete, weather permitting.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The total amount allocated for the Project is $515,000 consisting of Measure M ($165,000)
and Gas Tax ($350,000). This Project will rehabilitate three (3) alleys including concrete
ribbon gutters, asphalt concrete, upgrading the driveway entrances, and ADA compliance
items, with a design cost of $31,020. Staff is recommending the City Council approve the
plans and specifications, receive bids, award Contract to R.J. Noble Company in the amount
of $458,507.50, as depicted on page C-6 of their proposal and authorize the City Engineer to
issue change orders up to a "not to exceed" amount of 10% of the Contract amount, however
will not exceed the project budget. There are no impacts to the General Fund.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Raymond Contreras, Associate Engineer
Concurrence: Michael S. Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer
                       Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director

Attachments
Location Maps 
Proposal 
Contract Agreement 















































































ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  1 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
 

ALLEY REHABILITATION PROJECT, CIP NO. 7319, 7320, & 7321 
 

This Construction Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated _________________, 2020 for 
reference purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”), and RJ Noble Company, a California Corporation (“Contractor”).  Contractor’s CSLB 
license number is 782908.  Contractor’s DIR registration number is 1000004235. 

 
R E C I T A L S 

A. City duly solicited, received, publicly opened, and declared bids for the following 
public works project:  ALLEY REHABILITATION PROJECT, CIP NO. 7319, 7320, & 7321 
(“Project”). 

B. City selected Contractor as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the 
Project. 

C. The parties are executing this Agreement to provide for Contractor’s furnishing of 
labor, equipment, and material for the construction of the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, City 
and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK:  Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, 
tools, materials, appliances, and equipment and shall do the work for the construction of the 
ALLEY REHABILITATION PROJECT, CIP NO. 7319, 7320, & 7321 (“Project”). Such work 
shall be performed in accordance with contract documents for this Project on file in the office of 
the City Engineer and in accordance with bid prices, plans, and specifications more fully described 
in  
Section 4, below, and in accordance with the instructions of the Public Works Director 
(collectively, “Work”).  Contractor shall at all times comply with applicable laws and City policies. 

2. CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT: 

A. As total and complete compensation for satisfactorily completing the Work, 
City shall pay to Contractor the prices set forth in Contractor’s bid amount of $ 458,507.50. 
Progress payments shall be made for each portion of the Work satisfactorily completed. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall be authorized to withhold a retention from payments in 
the maximum amount permitted by law.  

B. At the written request and expense of Contractor, securities equivalent to 
any moneys withheld by City to ensure performance of this Agreement shall be deposited with 
City, or with a state or federally chartered bank in the State of California as the escrow agent, that 
shall then pay those moneys to Contractor. Upon satisfactory completion of this Agreement, the 
securities shall be returned to Contractor. Alternatively, Contractor may request that City make 
payment of retentions earned directly to the escrow agent at the expense of Contractor. At the 
expense of Contractor, Contractor may direct the investment of the payments into securities, and 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  2 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

Contractor shall receive the interest earned on the investments upon the same terms provided for 
securities deposited by Contractor. 

C. Upon satisfactory completion of this Agreement, Contractor shall receive 
from the escrow agent all securities, interest, and payments received by the escrow agent from City 
pursuant to the terms of this Section. Securities eligible for investment shall include those listed in 
Government Code Section 16430, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-bearing 
demand deposit accounts, standby letters of credit, or any other security to which the parties agree 
in writing.  Contractor shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for moneys 
withheld and shall receive any interest thereon. 

D. If Contractor elects to receive interest on moneys withheld in retention by 
City, then Contractor shall, at the request of any subcontractor performing more than five percent 
of Contractor’s total bid amount, make that option available to the subcontractor regarding any 
moneys withheld in retention by Contractor from the subcontractor.  Further mandatory details are 
provided in Public Contract Code Section 22300(d). 

E. The escrow agreement for security deposits in lieu of retention shall be 
substantially similar to the form provided in Public Contract Code Section 22300(f). 

3. CUSTOMER CARE:  Contractor, while fulfilling the terms of this Agreement, 
shall provide exceptional customer care.  Any negative contact with City staff, residents, 
businesses, visitors, or other contractors shall be reported by Contractor immediately to City.  
Contractor’s management and supervisory personnel shall intercede to resolve or mitigate the 
negative contact in conjunction with City staff.  The parties may agree in advance to a single person 
contact, a representative of either City or Contractor, for the investigation and response to 
complaints. 

4. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS:  The plans and specifications referenced in 
Section 1, above, the Notice Inviting Sealed Bids attached hereto, the Instructions to Bidders 
(including attachments), and, unless omitted from such Notice, the 2015 edition of “Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction” (“Standard Specifications”), as amended by the 
Contract Documents, all of which are incorporated by reference herein, and this written agreement 
(collectively, “Contract Documents”), shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties.  
This Agreement is intended to require a complete and finished piece of work, and Contractor shall 
perform all work necessary to properly complete the Work and the Project in accordance with 
applicable laws, whether set out specifically in the Contract Documents or not.  Should it be 
ascertained that any inconsistency exists between any of the Contract Documents, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control. 

5. COMPLETION DATE / LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:  

A. Contractor shall complete the Project within 60 working days from the date 
of Notice of Proceed (“Completion Date”).   

B. Contractor agrees further to the assessment of liquidated damages in the 
amount of $1,200.00 for each calendar day the work remains incomplete beyond the completion 
date. City may deduct liquidated damages from any monies due or that may become due 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  3 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

Contractor.  Progress payments made after the completion date shall not constitute a waiver of 
liquidated damages.   

6. TERMINATION: 

A. City may terminate this Agreement for convenience without penalty at any 
time upon 30 days’ written notice to Contractor.  In such event, City shall pay Contractor for all 
services satisfactorily rendered prior to date of termination, which in any case shall not exceed the 
total contract price, and such payment shall be in full satisfaction of all services rendered. 

B. If Contractor breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 
seven days of written notice, then City may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause. 

7. INSURANCE:   

A. Contractor shall not commence work until it has obtained all insurance 
required hereunder from a company or companies acceptable to City, nor shall Contractor allow 
any subcontractor to commence work on its subcontract until all insurance required of the 
subcontractor has been obtained.  Contractor shall take maintain the following policies of 
insurance: 

i. Compensation insurance:  Before beginning work, Contractor shall 
furnish to City a certificate of insurance as proof that it has taken out full compensation insurance 
for all persons whom Contractor may employ directly or through subcontractors in carrying out 
the Work, in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Such insurance shall be 
maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement.  Further, such 
policy of insurance shall provide that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City and 
its elected officials, officers, employees and agents.  In accordance with the provisions of Labor 
Code Section 3700, every contractor shall secure the payment of compensation to its employees.  
Contractor, prior to commencing work, shall sign and file with City a certification as follows: 

“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for worker’s compensation or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of work of this 
contract.” 

ii. For all operations of Contractor or any subcontractor in performing 
the Work, insurance with the following minimum limits and coverage: 

a. Commercial General Liability (occurrence) - for bodily 
injury, death, and property damage products/completed operations and all other activities 
undertaken by Contractor in the performance of this Agreement. 

b. Comprehensive Automobile Liability (occurrence) - for 
bodily injury, death, and property damage, insuring against all liability arising out of the use of 
any vehicle. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  4 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

c. Owner’s and Contractor’s Protective (occurrence) - for 
bodily injury, death, and property damage arising out of any activities undertaken by Contractor 
in the performance of this Agreement. 

d. Other required insurance, endorsement, or exclusions, as 
required by the Contract Documents. 

B. The policies of insurance required in paragraph (A)(ii) above shall have no 
less than the following limits of coverage: 

i. $2,000,000 for bodily injury or death; 

ii. $2,000,000 for property damage; and 

iii. The total of the limits specified in subsections (i) and (ii) above, 
where a combined single limit is provided. 

C. Each such policy of insurance required in paragraph (A)(ii) above shall: 

i. Be subject to no deductible amount unless otherwise provided, or 
approved in writing by City. 

ii. Be issued by an insurance company approved in writing by City, 
which is admitted and licensed to do business in the State of California and which is rated A/VII 
or better according to the most recent A.M. Best Co. Rating Guide. 

iii. Name as additional insureds City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, attorneys, and agents, and any other parties including subcontractors, specified by City 
to be included. 

iv. Specify that it acts as primary insurance and that no insurance held 
or owned by the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under such 
policy. 

v. Specify that it applies separately to each insured against whom claim 
is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 

vi. Contain a clause substantially in the following words: 

“It is hereby understood and agreed that this policy may not be canceled nor the 
amount of coverage thereof reduced until 30 days after receipt by the City of Brea 
of written notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage as evidenced by 
receipt of such notice by registered letter.” 

vii. Specify that any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions 
of the required policy, including breaches of warranty, shall not affect the coverage required to be 
provided. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  5 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

viii. Specify that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against the 
named additional insureds.  

ix. Specify that any and all costs of adjusting and/or defending any 
claim against any insured, including court costs and attorneys’ fees, shall be paid in addition to 
and shall not deplete any policy limits. 

x. Otherwise be in form satisfactory to City. 

D. Prior to commencing performance under this Agreement, Contractor shall 
furnish City with original endorsements, or copies of each required policy, effecting and 
evidencing the insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  The endorsements shall be signed 
by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on its behalf.  All endorsements or 
policies shall be received and approved by City before Contractor commences performance.  If 
performance of this Agreement shall extend beyond one year or if the policies expire prior to the 
end of the Contract, Contractor shall provide City with the required policies or endorsements 
evidencing renewal of the required policies of insurance prior to their expiration of any required 
policies of insurance. 

E. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (i) all the 
insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Contractor; or (ii) the minimum 
insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in this Agreement; whichever is greater. Any 
insurance proceeds in excess of or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum 
required limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No representation 
is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the 
obligations of Contractor  under this Agreement. 

8. LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE: 

A. Contractor acknowledges that the Work required is a “public work” as 
defined in Labor Code Section 1720 et seq.  Contractor is required to pay not less than the general 
prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in locality in which the public 
work is performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and 
overtime work.  In that regard, the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the State 
of California is required to and has determined such general prevailing rates of per diem wages.  
The applicable prevailing rates can be found on the following website:  
http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/pwd/.  For federally funded projects, Davis-Bacon requirements 
apply, and the appropriate wage determinations can be found in the project specifications.  
Contractor shall ascertain all prevailing wages applicable to the Project and shall cause a copy of 
such wage determinations to be posted at the job site. 

B. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1775, Contractor and all subcontractors 
shall, as a penalty to City, forfeit not more than $200 for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each worker paid less than the prevailing wage rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 
Relations for the work or craft in which the worker is employed for work done under this 
Agreement by Contractor or, except as provided in Section 1775(b), by any subcontractor. 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/pwd/


ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  6 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

C. Contractor shall comply with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code 
Section 1777.5 concerning the employment of apprentices on public works projects.  Contractor 
shall be responsible for compliance with Section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupations.  Prior 
to commencing the Work, Contractor shall provide City with a copy of the information submitted 
to any applicable apprenticeship program.  Within 60 days after concluding work pursuant to this 
Agreement, Contractor and each of its subcontractors shall submit to City a verified statement of 
the journeyman and apprentice hours performed under this Agreement. 

D. Eight hours of labor shall constitute a legal day’s work for all workmen 
employed in the execution of this Agreement, and Contractor and all subcontractors shall comply 
with and be governed by the laws of the State of California having to do with working hours. 

E. Contractor and all subcontractors shall, as a penalty to City, forfeit $25 for 
each worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by Contractor or a subcontractor for 
each calendar day during which the worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours 
in any one calendar day and 40 hours in any one calendar week in violation of the Labor Code. 

F. Contractor shall comply with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code 
Section 1776, which requires Contractor and each subcontractor to:  (i) keep accurate payroll 
records and verify such records in writing under penalty of perjury, as specified in Section 1776; 
(ii) certify and make such payroll records available for inspection as provided by Section 1776; 
and (iii) inform City of the location of the records. Contractor and each subcontractor shall comply 
with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code Section 1771.4(a)(3), which requires that each 
contractor and each subcontractor shall furnish the records specified in Section 1776 directly to 
the Labor Commissioner at least monthly, in a format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. 

G. For every subcontractor who will perform work on the Project, Contractor 
shall be responsible for such subcontractor’s compliance with Labor Code Sections 1771, 1775, 
1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815, and Contractor shall include in the written contract between it and 
each subcontractor copies of Labor Code Sections 1771, 1775, 1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815 and 
a requirement that each subcontractor shall comply with these statutes.  Contractor shall be 
required to take all actions necessary to enforce such contractual provisions and ensure each 
subcontractor’s compliance, including conducting a periodic review of the certified payroll records 
of the subcontractor.  Upon becoming aware of a failure of the subcontractor to pay its workers 
the specified prevailing rate of wages, Contractor shall diligently take corrective action to halt or 
rectify the failure. 

H. Contractor truthfully represents that at the time Contractor submitted its bid 
for this Project, and thereafter, Contractor possessed, and now possesses the required license(s) 
from the State Contractors State Licensing Board, and as required in the Contract Documents, as 
well as all permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of any nature that are legally required 
of Contractor to practice its trade(s) and complete the Project.  Contractor agrees to not be debarred 
at any time through the duration of this Agreement.  Contractor has investigated and represents 
and will ensure that all subcontractors possessed and now possess a valid specialty trade license in 
its trade, as well as all permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of any nature that are legally 
required of the subcontractor to practice its trade during the term of this Agreement and at the time 
Contractor’s bid was submitted.  All general building contractor licensees must comply with 
Business and Professions Code Section 7057.  Contractor and all subcontractors must comply with 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  7 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

business license requirements of City.  Contractor shall not perform work with any debarred 
subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section 1777.1 or 1777.7. 

9. UNRESOLVED DISPUTES:   

A. In the event that a dispute arises between the parties regarding whether the 
conditions materially differ, involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in 
Contractor’s cost of or time required for performance of any part of the Work, Contractor shall not 
be excused from the Completion Date, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the 
Agreement.  Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided that pertain to the resolution of 
disputes and protests between the parties.  In the event of any dispute or controversy with City 
over any matter whatsoever, Contractor shall not cause any delay or cessation in or of work, but 
shall proceed with the performance of the work in dispute.  This includes disputed time extension 
requests and prices for changes.  The disputed work will be categorized as an “unresolved dispute” 
and payment, if any, shall be as later determined by agreement or a court of law.  Contractor shall 
keep accurate, detailed records of all disputed work, claims and other disputed matters.   

B. All claims arising out of or related to the Contract Documents or this 
Project, and the consideration and payment of such claims, are subject to the Government Claims 
Act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) with regard to filing claims.  All such claims are also 
subject to the dispute procedures set forth in Public Contract Code Section 9204 and Public 
Contract Code Section 20104 et seq., to the extent each is applicable.  This Agreement hereby 
incorporates those provisions as through fully set forth herein.  Thus, Contractor or any 
subcontractor must file a claim in accordance with the Government Claims Act as prerequisite to 
filing a construction claim in compliance with Section 9204 and Section 20104 et seq. (if 
applicable), and must then adhere to Section 20104 et seq. and Section 9204, as applicable, with 
respect to any asserted “claim,” as individually defined in those Sections.  

10. ANTI-TRUST CLAIMS:  In entering into this Agreement, Contractor offers and 
agrees to assign to City all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Business and 
Professions Code Section 16700 et seq.) arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 
pursuant to this Agreement.  This assignment shall be made and become effective at the time City 
tenders final payment to Contractor without further action or acknowledgment by the parties. 

11. THIRD PARTY CLAIMS: Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9201, City 
has full authority to compromise or otherwise settle any claim relating to this Agreement at any 
time. City shall timely notify Contractor of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to this 
Agreement.  City shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in providing the 
notification required by Public Contract Code Section 9201(b).  

12. RIGHT TO AUDIT:  City or its representative shall have the option of inspecting 
and/or auditing all records and other written materials used by Contractor in preparing its billings 
to City as a condition precedent to any payment to Contractor.  Contractor will promptly furnish 
documents requested by City. Additionally, pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, if this 
Agreement involves the expenditure of public funds in excess of $10,000, Contractor shall be 
subject to State Auditor examination and audit at the request of City or as part of any audit of City, 
for a period of three years after final payment under this Agreement. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  8 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

13. TRENCHING AND EXCAVATIONS:   

A. If the Project involves trenching more than four feet deep, Contractor shall 
promptly and before the following conditions are disturbed notify City in writing of any:  (i) 
material that Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in California 
Health and Safety Code Section 25117, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or 
Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law; (ii) subsurface or latent 
physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated; or (iii) unknown physical conditions 
at the site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and 
generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this Agreement.  City 
shall investigate the conditions, and if City finds that the conditions do materially differ or do 
involve hazardous waste and cause a decrease or increase in Contractor’s cost of or the time 
required for performance of any part of the Work, City shall issue a change order. 

B. In addition, whenever work under this Agreement  involves an estimated 
expenditure in excess of $25,000 for the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more 
in depth, Contractor shall submit for acceptance by City or by a registered civil or structural 
engineer employed by City to whom authority to accept has been delegated, in advance of 
excavation, a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to 
be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation, of such 
trench or trenches.  If such plan varies from the shoring system standards established by the 
Construction Safety Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, the plan shall be prepared by a 
registered civil or structural engineer employed by Contractor, and all costs therefor shall be 
included in the contract price herein for completion of the Work as set forth in this Agreement.  
Nothing in this provision shall be deemed to allow the use of a shoring, sloping, or other protective 
system less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders.  Nothing in this 
provision shall be construed to impose tort liability on City or on any City officer, agent, or 
employee.  All plans, plan review, processing, and shoring costs are Contractor’s financial and 
legal responsibility. 

14. UTILITIES:  City acknowledges its responsibilities under Government Code 
Section 4215 concerning existing utilities. 

15. LOCATION OF EXISTING ELEMENTS:  The methods used and costs 
involved to locate existing elements, points of connection and all construction methods are 
Contractor’s sole responsibility.  Accuracy of information furnished, as to existing conditions, is 
not guaranteed by City.  Contractor must strictly comply with all applicable requirements of 
Government Code Section 4216 et seq. Prior to commencement of the Work,  Contractor, at its 
sole expense, must make all investigations necessary to determine locations of existing elements, 
which may include contacting Underground Service Alert and other private underground locating 
firm(s), utilizing specialized locating equipment, hand trenching, or both.  Contractor must provide 
City with every Dig Alert Identification Number issued by Underground Service Alert during the 
course of the Project.  Contractor shall be responsible for preserving the integrity of the existing 
underground utilities and elements at the site. 

 

 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  9 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

16. CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY:   

A. City and its officers, agents, and employees shall not be answerable or 
accountable in any manner for any loss or damage that may happen to the Work or any part thereof, 
or for any of the materials or other things used or employed in performing the Work; or for injury 
or damage to any person or persons, either workers, employees of Contractor or its subcontractors 
or the public, or for damage to adjoining or other property from any cause whatsoever arising out 
of or in connection with the performance of the Work.  Contractor shall be responsible for all 
damage or injury to any person or property resulting from defects or obstructions or from any 
cause whatsoever, except the sole negligence or willful misconduct of City, its employees, 
servants, or independent contractors who are directly responsible to City during the progress of 
the Work or at any time before its completion and final acceptance. 

B. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Contractor will defend, 
indemnify, and hold City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 
(collectively, “Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any and all actions, claims, liens, 
stop notices, damages to persons or property, penalties, obligations, and liabilities that may be 
asserted or claimed by any person, firm, entity, corporation, political subdivision, or other entity 
in any way arising out of or in connection with the acts, omissions, willful misconduct, work, 
operations, breach of this Agreement, violation of the Labor Code or any other code or regulation, 
and/or activities of Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors, or invitees in or related to 
the performance of this Agreement (collectively, “Claims”), whether or not there is concurrent 
passive or active negligence on the part of any of the Indemnitees, but excluding such actions, 
claims, damages to persons or property, penalties, obligations, or liabilities arising from the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnitees, as determined by a final court decision 
or agreement of the parties.   

C. Contractor will defend any action or actions filed in connection with any 
Claims and will pay all costs and expenses, including actual attorneys’ fees incurred in connection 
therewith. 

D. Contractor will promptly pay any judgment rendered against Contractor or 
any of the Indemnitees as a result of any Claims, and Contractor agrees to indemnify and save and 
hold the Indemnitees harmless therefrom. 

E. In the event any Indemnitee is made a party to any action or proceeding 
filed or prosecuted against Contractor in connection with any Claims, Contractor shall pay to the 
Indemnitees any and all costs and expenses incurred by the Indemnitees in such action or 
proceeding together with actual attorneys’ fees. 

F. So much of the money due to Contractor under and by virtue of this 
Agreement, as shall be considered necessary by City, may be retained by City until Contractor has 
satisfied its indemnity obligations under this Section. 

17. ASSIGNMENT:  Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this 
Agreement or any part thereof, whether by assignment or novation, without City’s prior written 
consent.  Any purported assignment without written consent shall be null, void, and of no effect, 
and Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify City and its officers, officials, 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  10 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

employees, agents, and representatives with respect to any claim, demand, or action arising from 
or relating to any unauthorized assignment. 

18. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS:  Contractor represents, covenants 
and agrees that:  (i) Contractor is qualified and capable of furnishing the labor, materials, and 
expertise necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement; (ii) there are no obligations, commitments, or impediments of any kind that will 
limit or prevent Contractor’s full performance under this Agreement; (iii) there is no litigation 
pending against Contractor or any owner or officer thereof, involving alleged theft, dishonesty, or 
fraud involving a public works project, and neither Contractor nor any owner or officer thereof is 
the subject of any criminal investigation or proceeding involving a public works project; and (iv) 
to Contractor’s actual knowledge, neither Contractor nor any owner or officer thereof has been 
convicted of a felony involving theft, dishonesty, or fraud in connection with a public works 
project, within the last 10 years. 

19. NOTICES:  Except as otherwise required by law, any notice, payment, or other 
communication authorized or required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
received on (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during City’s 
regular business hours or (ii) on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, 
postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or at such other address as one party may notify the 
other: 

To City:  
Director of Public Works  
City of Brea 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, California 92821 
 
 
To Contractor: 
_____________________ 
_____________________ 
_____________________ 
 
 

 
20. NON-DISCRIMINATION:  No discrimination shall be made in the employment 

of persons upon public works because of the race, color, or religion of such persons, or on any 
other basis specified in Government Code Section 12940.  Every contractor for public works 
violating this section is subject to all the penalties imposed for a violation of Labor Code Section 
1720 et seq. in accordance with the provisions of Section 1735 of such Code. 

21. APPLICABLE LAW:  The validity, interpretation, and performance of this 
Agreement shall be controlled by and construed under the laws of the State of California, excluding 
the choice of law rules.  Venue for any such action relating to this Agreement shall be in the Orange 
County Superior Court. 



ORIGINAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Alley Rehabilitation Project  11 of 11   Project No’s. 7319, 7320, and 7321 
2369843.4 [01/03/20] 

22. ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  In the event that any action or proceeding is brought by 
either party to enforce any term or provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover 
its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred with respect thereto. 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including the Contract Documents, 
and any other documents incorporated herein by specific reference, represents the entire and 
integrated agreement between the parties.  This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written 
negotiations, representations or agreements.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended, 
nor any provision or breach waived, except in a writing signed by both parties which expressly 
refers to this Agreement. 

24. NON-WAIVER OF TERMS:  Waiver by either party of any one or more of the 
conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of 
performance under this Agreement.  In no event shall the making by City of any payment to 
Contractor constitute or be construed as a waiver by City of any breach of covenant, or any default 
which may then exist on the part of Contractor, and the making of any such payment by City shall 
in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to City with regard to such breach or 
default. 

25. AUTHORITY:  Any person executing this Agreement on behalf of Contractor 
warrants and represents that he or she has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of 
Contractor and has the authority to bind Contractor to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

26. COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
duplicate originals, or both, each of which is deemed to be an original for all purposes. 

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the parties have caused their authorized representatives 
to sign below. 

 
RJ NOBLE COMPANY 
 
     
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
□ Chairperson □ President □ Vice President  □ Secretary □ Asst. Secretary  
       □ Chief Finance Officer □ Asst. Treasurer 
 
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed 
unless the signatory holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.] 
 
CITY OF BREA 
 
By: _____________________________   
 Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _____________________________   
 City Clerk 



  7. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with LPA, Inc. for Parks,
Recreation and Human Services Planning Services

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Amendment No. 1 with LPA, Inc. in a not-to-exceed amount of $6,646.24 resulting
in a total contract amount not-to-exceed $56,646.24 and appropriate $6,646.24 from Park
Development Reserves (Fund 250).

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
On February 5, 2019, City Council authorized a contract in the amount of $50,000 with LPA,
Inc. to commence the Parks, Recreation and Human Services Needs Assessment. This
project began in response to City Council outlining one of their goals to strategically plan for
Brea's future and to launch off of the great work completed through the Brea Envisions effort.
The scope of work for this contract included taking inventory of various community facilities,
as well as the amenities and programs housed within each facility, in order to create a gaps
analysis identifying what amenities and/or programs may still be missing in Brea. This draft
report was created by comparing the Brea inventory to other local municipalities which are
comparable to Brea in either region or population size. 

LPA, Inc. has concluded the original scope of services by preparing their report and
presented their findings to the Parks, Recreation and Human Services Commission earlier
this year. Though, due to an administrative oversight, an additional meeting needed to be
scheduled which resulted in the City incurring an additional cost for LPA, Inc to make two
trips to Brea.  The amount owed exceeds the amount previously authorized by the City
Council and this amendment would cover the costs of the additional meeting dates.
Additionally, staff is interested in having LPA, Inc. expand their scope of services to include
participating in presenting the report to City Council and the community, as well as complete
any follow-up work prior to finalizing their assessment. Staff finds value in expanding their
scope to include assistance with this final public meeting, as maintaining the third-party and
unbiased assessment has been a vital component of preparing this data and ensuring the
desires of the community are validated through the process. Ultimately, staff intends to utilize
the report's findings in planning the future of any City-owned facilities, as well as in future
discussions with the development community. 

LPA has estimated the additional cost for these two items is $6,646.24, broken down as
follows:
  



Additional meeting for presentation of project to the Parks, Recreation and Human
Services Commission - $4,646; and

  

Assistance with an additional public presentation and the completion of the Parks,
Recreation and Human Services Needs Assessment (only to be paid as needed)
- $2,000. 

Prior to this project, LPA has previously done work for Brea serving as the architect for both
the Brea Community Center (1996) and the Brea Sports Park (2009). LPA is familiar with our
community and staff has remained satisfied with their work and high quality staff. 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
There is no General Fund impact. The remainder of this project will be funded by the Park
Development Fund (250). 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Jenn Colacion, Management Analyst
Concurrence:Chris Emeterio, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Amendment 



Page 1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 
to the AGREEMENT for PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

with LPA, Inc. 
for Professional Parks and Recreation Planning Services 

THIS AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is effective on the date on which this Agreement is 
executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and LPA, Inc. 
(“CONTRACTOR”). Contractor and City are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the 
“Parties” and singularly as “Party”. 
I. Recitals 

A. The Parties entered into an Agreement on February 5, 2019 (“Agreement Date”), 
whereby CONTRACTOR agreed to provide Professional Parks and Recreation 
Planning services as set forth in Exhibit A (“Services”) on City’s behalf at the 
prices set forth in Exhibit A all according to the provisions and requirements as set 
forth in the Agreement all to CITY’s reasonable satisfaction (“Agreement”). 

II. Amendment 
The Parties agree to amend this Agreement as follows: 
A. Increase the not-to-exceed aggregate amount from $50,000.00 to $56,646.24. 
B. That all other terms and conditions as set forth in the original Agreement shall 

remain in effect for the duration of this Agreement. 
(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 

 
  



Page 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
executed by City. The undersigned Parties represent and warrant that they are authorized to 
bind their principles to the terms of this agreement. 
Contractor 

Business Name: LPA, Inc. 

Taxpayer ID#:  
only for Public Works projects Contractor Lic.#:  DIR Reg#:  

Business Type 
(Contractor select one) 

☐ Individual/Sole Proprietor or single-member LLC; 
☒ C Corporation; ☐ S Corporation; ☐ Partnership; ☐ Trust/estate; 
☐ Limited Liability Company 
☐ Other (specify)       

Authorized Signatory  

Title  

Address, Suite#  

City, State, Zip  

Phone  

Email  

Signature(s): 
(principal)  Date:       

Signature(s): 
(2nd Signature required if corp)  Date:       

 
City of Brea 

 City of Brea, a California Municipal Corporation 
Address: 1 Civic Center Circle 

City, State, Zip: Brea California 92821 
Printed Name: Marty Simonoff 

Title: Mayor 

Authorized Signature:  Date  

Attestation (if total contract value exceeds $25,000 or $200,000 for Public Works projects) 
Printed Name: Lillian Harris-Neal, MMC 

Title: City Clerk 

Authorized Signature:  Date  
 



  8. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Extension of the Lateral Police Officer Bonus Incentive Pilot Program

RECOMMENDATION
Continue for an additional year the lateral police officer recruitment incentive bonus pilot
program, up to four officers for FY 2020-21 at $12,000 per officer to include an initial
payment of $6,000 upon hire per lateral police officer, and the second $6,000 would be paid
upon successful completion of the required one-year probationary employment period . 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Recruitment of police officers continues to be highly competitive as law enforcement
agencies throughout Southern California compete for the same limited pool of applicants for
pre-service police academy recruits.  While the Police Department and the City’s Human
Resources Division continue to proactively seek qualified candidates, lateral police officers
continue to be an additional way to secure quality qualified police officers.  Lateral police
officers are currently serving police officers at other law enforcement agencies who may be
interested in seeking employment at a different agency.  The desire to seek employment at
another police department can often be driven by the desire to seek new opportunities or a
need to relocate for various reasons.  Lateral police officers bring training and experience to
the Brea Police Department and can be trained and deployed into the field at a more
accelerated rate than police recruits. 

In order to increase the City’s attractiveness to potential lateral police officers, the Police
Department and the City’s Human Resources Division worked together to develop a pilot
program to provide new lateral police officers with a recruitment bonus.  A lateral police
officer hired by the City after this pilot program’s second-year approval by City Council is
eligible for a $12,000 bonus, paid in two installments.  The first $6,000 would be paid upon
hire, and the second $6,000 would be paid upon the successful completion of the required
one-year probationary employment period.

The program's first year was FY 2019-20.  During FY 2019-20, three qualified lateral police
officers were employed by the Police Department under this incentive program.  All three are
experienced police officers who each has between 5 – 6.5 years of law enforcement
experience with other agencies prior to joining the Brea Police Department.  All three officers
brought a wealth of experience and knowledge with them which ranged from bias-based
policing, tactical communications, and tolerance training to one being a certified drug
recognition expert.  One of the lateral police officers is currently off training and successfully
working on his own.  The other two lateral police officers are currently finishing up their field
training and will be deployed into the field ahead of other trainees due to their prior years of



training and will be deployed into the field ahead of other trainees due to their prior years of
service with their respective law enforcement agencies. Staff is recommending an additional
year of the program for up to four officer within FY 2020-21

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The proposed funding allocation for this second-year pilot program is $48,000 spread over
two fiscal years.  $24,000 will be allocated in Fiscal Year 2020-21, enough for the hiring of
up to four (4) lateral police officers during that fiscal year.  The other $24,000 will be
allocated for Fiscal Year 2021-22, for the second installment of those lateral police officers
for the successful conclusion of their probationary year.  No new funds are being requested
to continue this program as salary savings within the Police Department budget are expected
to be available to fund this program.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Adam Hawley, Acting Chief of Police
 

Attachments
FY 19-20 Lateral Police Officer Bonus Incentive Pilot Program 



Agenda Item 20. 

City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: John Burks, Police Chief

DATE: 09/17/2019

SUBJECT: Lateral Police Officer Recruitment Bonus Incentive-Pilot Program

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize lateral police officer recruitment incentive bonus pilot program to include payment of

6,000 upon hire per lateral police officer, and the second $6,000 would be paid upon successful

completion of the required one- year probationary employment period, up to four officers within

FY 2019- 20.

BACKGROUND/ DISCUSSION

Now more than any time in the recent past, the recruitment of Police Officers has become highly

competitive as law enforcement agencies throughout southern California are competing for the

same applicants, especially for pre-service police academy recruits. Although the Police

Department and the City' s Human Resources Division continue to proactively seek a large pool

of pre- service candidates, another way to address applicant shortages and find a competitive

advantage is to seek Lateral Police Officer applicants. These are current police officers at other

law enforcement agencies who may be interested in seeking employment at a different agency.

Often, lateral police officers are seeking new opportunities or may wish to re-locate for various

reasons. Lateral Police Officers bring training and experience, and can be deployed into the field

much more quickly than Police Recruits. They can also bring experience balance to the

department. In order to increase the City' s attractiveness to potential Lateral Police Officers, the

Police Department and the City's Human Resources Division have worked together to develop a

pilot program to provide new Lateral Police Officers with a recruitment bonus. New Lateral Police

Officers hired by the City after this program' s approval by City Council will be eligible for a

12,000 bonus, paid in two installments. The first $6,000 would be paid upon hire, and the

second $ 6,000 would be paid upon successful completion of the required one- year probationary

employment period.

COMMISSION/ COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

This item was reviewed by Finance Committee on September 10, 2019. 



FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY

The proposed funding allocation for this pilot program is $48,000 spread over two fiscal years.

24,000 will be allocated in FY 2019- 20, enough for the hiring of up to four ( 4) Lateral Police

Officers during that fiscal year. Due to salary savings within the FY 2019- 20 budget, sufficient

funds will exist to implement the pilot program. $24,000 will be submitted for approval within the

FY 2020- 21 budget to pay the second installment for those Laterals should they successfully

complete their probationary employment period.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

William Gallardo, City Manager

Prepared by:

Concurrence:



  9. 

City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/30/2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Fiscal Year 2020-21 Property Tax Rate to Fund the City's Paramedic Program 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve resolution.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
At the March 7, 1978, general municipal election, the qualified electors of the City, by and through the City
Council, approved the levy of an annual property tax rate to fund the City’s Paramedic Program. This annual
property tax was not to exceed $0.20 per $100 of Assessed Value (25% of market value) per year. Beginning in
1981, the County of Orange implemented a policy change concerning Assessed Value. The tax roll is now
reported at “Full Taxable Value” rather than Assessed Value.

For Fiscal Year 1981-82, the property valuation was increased to Full Taxable Value for property tax purposes.
Therefore, the tax rate needed to be decreased in order for the actual amount of taxes paid by the property
owner to remain unchanged. According to Resolution 81-72, a tax rate of $0.045 per $100 of Full Taxable Value
is equivalent to a tax rate of $0.18 per $100.00 of Assessed Value based on the previous method.

State law prohibits the City Council from increasing the paramedic levy above the voter-authorized level. The tax
rate of $0.045 per $100 of Full Taxable Value is less than the voter-authorized maximum tax rate. Additionally, it
is noted that the passage of Proposition 218 by the voters in November 1996 had no impact on the City’s ability
to levy the annual Paramedic Tax, as the tax was voter-approved in 1978.

Each fiscal year the City Council adopts a resolution approving the rate of tax upon taxable property within the
City of Brea. This tax rate is required to be approved by City Council and submitted to the Orange County
Auditor-Controller’s Office no later than August 10, 2020 allowing the County to apply the rate of taxation to the
City’s property tax roll to maintain the Paramedic Program.

Since its inception in 1979, the Brea Fire Services Department Paramedic Program has grown considerably
from the days when the paramedics responded to calls in an old red van. Currently, the paramedics utilize a
modern paramedic engine company configuration. The original program that began in Fiscal Year 1978-79 had a
budget of $200,000 and was fully funded by revenues generated from the paramedic tax. While the actual tax
rate has remained constant over the past 39 years, additional revenue has been generated from increases in
the property values. Meanwhile, direct expenditures have increased as the program has been greatly enhanced,
as outlined below, and as the City’s population and service demands have increased.

About the Paramedic Program
A “Paramedic Engine Company” providing Emergency Medical Service (EMS) delivery is currently the most
common staffing configuration in operation locally and regionally. This configuration provides for Advanced Life
Support capability within its fire-fighting and emergency response resources without compromising either service.
The City’s paramedic units, Brea Engine Company #1, Truck Company #2 and Engine Company #3, are
complete units that respond to both fires and medical emergencies. In addition, resources necessary to provide
functional support, such as extrication of patients and fire protection during traffic emergencies, are available at
the scene with the paramedic unit.

The program started in Fiscal Year 1978-79 with seven certified paramedics. The Brea Fire Services Department
currently carries a complement of 21 certified paramedics and one Emergency Medical Services Manager. This



currently carries a complement of 21 certified paramedics and one Emergency Medical Services Manager. This
allocation level meets the staffing requirement of the Orange County EMS Agency while providing for
uninterrupted deployment of paramedics during leave, training and emergency conditions. Just as the nature of
emergencies has changed, so has the required paramedic skill level. Paramedics are being delegated greater
responsibility in the field as emergency room medicine is continually being evaluated and streamlined.
Paramedic staff receive continuous in-service training on a myriad of topics, including: trauma medicine; air and
blood-borne pathogens; environmental emergencies; pediatric medicine, including sudden death syndrome;
swift water rescue and mass casualty management.

Field techniques have improved greatly since the program began with treatment advances in the areas of Adult
and Pediatric Intubation (airway management requiring insertion of appliances into the trachea), cervical-spine
treatments and neurological protection, improved treatment for burn victims and the AED program (cardiac
defibrillation), which is in service on all responding Brea units.

Paramedic Response History 
Calendar Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Total Emergency Medical Calls(1) 4,052 4,218 4,265 3,948 3,832
Total Calls for Service from Fire Dept.
(Including false alarm responses)(1) 5,364 5,413 5,373 4,917 4,893

Percent of Total 75.54% 77.92% 79.38% 80.29% 78.3%
(1) Data updated to include all call data reported from the Metro Cities Fire Authority Metro Net
Communications Report

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Paramedic tax revenue is accounted for in the Paramedic Services Fund (Fund 174) separate from the City's
General Fund. This fund was established to account for revenues generated from the paramedic tax and other
revenues, as well as costs associated with the Brea Paramedic Program. This includes personnel costs for 21
full-time paramedic positions, one EMS Manager position and related costs to operate the program.

The proposed paramedic tax rate is $0.045 per $100 of Full Taxable Valuation. Based on an estimated Full
Taxable Valuation (secured and unsecured value) of $11.358 billion, the estimated tax levy is $5.111 million. The
total annual levy also includes a levy on supplemental, public utility and other property values that occur annually
which is projected to bring the total levy to $5.368 million.

The former Brea Redevelopment Agency (RDA), which was established in 1971, impacts the flow of paramedic
tax revenues to the City. Property owners within the RDA project area pay the same property rate as if they were
outside the RDA project area (non-RDA area properties). Paramedic tax for properties outside the RDA project
area are remitted to the County and flow directly back to the City. However, under state law, property tax
revenue (including the Paramedic Tax) remitted by property owners within the Redevelopment Project Areas to
the county was allocated annually first to the Redevelopment Agency.

In 2012, Redevelopment Agencies were dissolved and Successor Agencies were established to pay off the
remaining obligations for the former redevelopment agencies. As in all California cities, Brea’s property taxes
(including Paramedic Tax) remitted from properties in the project areas, are now allocated to Redevelopment
Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) and the portion needed to pay off the obligations for that fiscal year is
forwarded to the Successor Agency. The remaining portion of the Paramedic Tax revenues allocated to the
RPTTF are passed back to the City.

As the Successor Agency pays down the obligations of the former Redevelopment Agency, the Paramedic Tax
revenues that were previously directed to the RDA and now the Successor Agency are slowly, but surely, coming
back to the City for paramedic service sooner than they otherwise would have been. For FY 2020-21, it is
estimated that 63.1% of paramedic tax revenues ($1.501 million) allocated to the RPTTF will be passed back to
the City.

The following is a summary of the estimated levy; the amount to be allocated to the Successor Agency and the
amount to be passed back to the City:
Property Description Amount to



Estimated Levy Successor Agency Amount to City % to the City

Non-Redevelopment Area Properties $2.989 $2.989 100.0%
Redevelopment Area Properties $2.379 ($0.878) $1.501 63.1%
Totals $5.368 ($0.878) $4.490

The estimated paramedic tax levy, net of the amount retained by the Successor Agency is projected to generate
$4,490,000 to the City of Brea in Fiscal Year 2020-21. The revenue collected will cover approximately 75.7% of
the $5,928,017 of estimated program costs. The difference is to be funded from the City's General Fund in the
amount of $1,091,299 and other revenues sources in the amount of $346,718. Other revenue sources include
pass-thru revenue received for Advanced Life Support (ALS) ambulance transport services, as well as revenue
received from the City of Fullerton for Fire Command Staff Sharing of the EMS Manager position. The City of
Fullerton reimburses the City of Brea for 59% of the position. 



RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Alicia Brenner, Senior Fiscal Analyst
Concurrence: Cindy Russell, Administrative Services Director

Attachments
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA 
FIXING THE RATE OF TAX UPON THE TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE CITY OF BREA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 NECESSARY TO 
MAINTAIN A MOBILE INTENSIVE CARE PROGRAM KNOWN AS 
PARAMEDICS WITHIN THE AREA OF THE CITY OF BREA AND 
CERTIFYING SAID RATE OF TAXATION TO THE ORANGE COUNTY 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

A. RECITALS:

(i) During the General Municipal Election held March 7, 1978, the qualified 

electors of the City of Brea authorized the City, by and through the Council, to levy a 

property tax rate not exceed $0.20 per $100 of Assessed Valuation in addition to its 

maximum property tax rate established pursuant to Division 1, Part 4, Chapter 2 of the 

California Revenue and Taxation Code for the specific purpose of establishing and 

maintaining a mobile intensive care program known as Paramedics within the area of the 

City of Brea (said "Paramedic Program" hereafter).  

(ii) In Fiscal Year 1981-82, the County of Orange implemented a policy 

concerning Assessed Value.  The tax roll is now reported at "Full Taxable Value" rather 

than Assessed Value. This change resulted in $0.045 per $100 Full Taxable Value as the 

tax levy for the Paramedic Program in years 1981-82 through 2018-19.

(iii) Information and evidence presented to this Council indicated that it would be 

necessary to expend a sum of approximately $5,928,017 during the Fiscal Year 2020-21 in 

order to maintain the Paramedic Program within the area of the City of Brea.

(iv) The revenue to be generated for Fiscal Year 2020-21 based on the tax levy 

of $0.045 per $100 of Full Taxable Value of the property within the City of Brea, exclusive 

of the revenue generated from the valuation within the Brea Community Redevelopment 

Project areas and required to be allocated to the Successor Agency has been estimated to 



be $4,490,000.  

(v) All legal prerequisites of the adoption of this resolution have occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it is found, determined and resolved by the City Council of 

the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A of this Resolution.

2. There is hereby fixed and levied that the total rate of taxation of $0.045 per 

$100 of Full Taxable Value of all taxable property within the City of Brea, said taxation to 

be utilized to maintain a mobile intensive program known as the Paramedic Program within 

the area of Brea for the Fiscal Year 2020-21 and this Council hereby certifies said rate of 

taxation for that specified purpose to the Auditor-Controller of the County of Orange.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and file with the

Orange County Auditor-Controller, a certified copy hereof, on or before August 10, 2020.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this

________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST: ______________________________
City Clerk



I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the , by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

DATED: __________________________

_________________________________
City Clerk


	Agenda
	 Item 2 - Approval of Action Minutes for June 9, 2020 Meeting
	Att1_06-09-2020 Minutes
	 Item 3 - Acceptance of Contract and Notice of Completion for Contract with Big Ben, Inc. for 375-395 Central Avenue Sewer Improvements, CIP No. 7627
	Att1_Location Map
	Att2_Notice of Completion 
	 Item 4 - Approve Plans and Specifications, Receive Bids and Award Contract with Big Ben, Inc. for the Brea Water Main Replacement North Hills West & East Tract
	Att1_Location Maps
	Att2_Attachment B - Proposal
	Att3_Attachment C - Construction Contract Agreement
	 Item 5 - Maintenance Agreement for Slurry Seal Program
	Att1_Agreement
	Att2_Pricing Information
	Sheet1

	 Item 6 - Approve Plans and Specifications, Receive Bids and Award Contract with R.J. Noble Company in the amount of $458,507.50 for the Alley Rehab. Projects
	Att1_Location Maps
	Att2_Proposal
	Att3_Contract Agreement
	 Item 7 - Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with LPA, Inc. for Parks, Recreation and Human Services Planning Services
	Att1_Amendment
	AMENDMENT NO. 1
	to the AGREEMENT for PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	with LPA, Inc.
	for Professional Parks and Recreation Planning Services

	 Item 8 - Extension of the Lateral Police Officer Bonus Incentive Pilot Program
	Att1_FY 19-20 Lateral Police Officer Bonus Incentive Pilot Program
	 Item 9 - Approval of Fiscal Year 2020-21 Property Tax Rate to Fund the City's Paramedic Program
	Att1_Resolution

